
 
TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

REGULAR SESSION 

MONDAY, JUNE 15, 2020 – 6:30 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

TOWN HALL 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

 

Welcome to the Town of Abingdon, Virginia Council meeting. We appreciate your interest and 

we encourage public participation in our meeting. Your comments are important to our 

decision making process.   Please note that there will be an opportunity during the meeting for 

you to address the Council members when the Mayor declares the public comments open. We 

do request that anyone addressing the Council, sign-up, approach the podium, identify your 

first and last name and give your complete mailing address. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Craig 

 

B. ROLL CALL – Kim Kingsley, Clerk 

 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Donna Quetsch, Council Member 

 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Craig 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided and 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 

 May 18, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 

G. PETITIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

1. PUBLIC HEARING – A proposed right of way and easement for an electric power 

line(s) to Appalachian Power Company, a Virginia corporation, on property known as 

“Fairview Farm and Foundation”, located at or near 908 Hillman Highway, consisting 

of 421 feet, more or less. – John Dew, Director of Public Works  

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING and FIRST READING – A proposed zoning text amendment 

to amend The Code of the Town of Abingdon, Appendix B – Zoning Ordinance, Article 



8. OH Old and Historic District, Section 8-2. – Permitted uses – By Right, Subsection 

8-2-4. – Jason Boswell, Director of Planning 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING and FIRST READING – A proposed zoning text amendment 

to amend The Code of the Town of Abingdon, Appendix B – Zoning Ordinance, Article 

8. OH Old and Historic District, Section 8-2. – Permitted uses – By Right, Subsection 

8-2-13. – Jason Boswell, Director of Planning 

 

H. CONSIDERATION OF ANY BIDS 

 

I. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN MANAGER 
 

1. Discussion regarding vacation and sick leave policies – James Morani, Town 

Manager 

 

2. Discussion regarding FY 2019-2020 Budget – James Morani, Town Manager 

 

J. PASSAGE OF RESOLUTIONS 

 

1. Third Amended Resolution to suspend disconnection of water and/or sewer service 

effective from the date of its passage until June 30, 2020, to any customer due to non-

payment. – James Morani, Town Manager 

 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

 

1. First Reading – Amendment to Part II – Code, Chapter 2 – Administration, Article VI. 

– Planning Commission, Division 2. – Powers and Duties, Section 2-351. – Officers 

and Section 2-356. - Secretary. – James Morani, Town Manager 

 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 
 

1. Second Reading – An Ordinance of the Council for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

proposing a budget for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia and to make appropriation for 

the current expenses of the Town and to fix a tax rate upon real and personal property, 

to fix all other local tax rates and fees and rates on utility services for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021. – James Morani, Town Manager  
 

M. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1. Proclamation of the Council for the Town of Abingdon Recognizing June 7-13, 2020 

as National Garden Week – Cindy Patterson, Vice Mayor 

 

2. Approval of the application for Certificate of Appropriateness; Michael and Lori 

Noonkestner, 1103 Empire Drive, SW, Abingdon, Virginia 24212: Owner. COA for 

approval of the Final Plat, total area of this subdivision is 3.28 acres, subdivided into 

seven lots. Located at 1103 Empire Drive, SW, Abingdon, Virginia. Tax Map ID 106-

7-1A. – Jason Boswell, Director of Planning  laminated  



 

N. OLD BUSINESS 
 

O. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 
 

P. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES  

  

1. Tourism Advisory Committee 

 

- Reappointment of Nicole Dyer, representative for retail or downtown business 

owner, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

- Reappointment of Kathy Shearer, Member at Large, who is eligible to serve 

an additional term 

 
If Council so desires, Closed Session pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of considering applications for 
appointment/reappointment the position(s) on the Tourism Advisory Committee. 

 

Q. ADJOURN 
 



 
- 45 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, MAY 18, 2020 – 6:30 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 A regular meeting/budget work session of the Abingdon Town Council was held on 

Monday, May 18, 2020 at 6:30 pm in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building. 

A.       WELCOME- Mayor Craig  

 

B. ROLL CALL – Kimberly Kingsley,  Clerk 

 Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

 

Mrs. Quetsch 

Mr. Webb 

Ms. Patterson 

Mayor Craig 

Mr. Bradley (electronic) 

 Cameron Bell, Counsel, stated that the legislation recently passed amendments to allow 

electronic meetings during the emergency, therefore we are meeting during the COVID-19 

emergency in part by electronic communication means by WebEx.   Mr. Bell further stated that 

Mr. Bradley is communicating through electronic communication. (VIDEO 1:00 – 1:34) 

 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE –  Derek Webb, Council Member 

 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Craig (VIDEO 2:12 – 11:15) 

 

On motion by Ms. Patterson, to amend the agenda “to put this item after the 

approval of the minutes, a discussion by the full Council the specific line items 

presented in the draft budget that I received last week and the amendment 

sent out to Council Friday.  The reason for my request is that our normal 

budget process including our discussion for the budget is open in open public 

meetings includes discussion of the draft budget and line item format to allow 

Council members input and suggested changes based on citizen input to us 

individually and our own research and” 

 

Mayor Craig requested that Ms. Patterson make a motion to amend the agenda without 

stating her requested amendment.  Mayor Craig asked her to state the Motion again. 

 

On motion by Ms. Patterson, seconded by Mr. Bradley, to amend the agenda 

and add an item after the approval of the minutes for discussion about specific 

line items presented in the draft budget.  

 



 
- 46 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

Ms. Patterson continued with her reason for the request, that our normal 

budget process in open meetings, includes discussion of the draft budget and 

line item format to allow Council members input and suggested changes based 

on citizen input to us individually and our own research and review of the town 

priorities and needs.  We certainly appreciate the ground work the Finance 

Committee and draft produced by our Town Manager, Brenda and Stephanie.  

The point being is that where we always have open public discussion in 

consideration for changes to the draft improvements and critical Council 

member input by each elected official.  Perhaps inadvertently this step has not 

been taken and needs to be taken tonight prior to any first reading so we as a 

Council can make necessary changes and compromises, especially in the midst 

of the crisis that we’re in.   I recognize that COVID-19 has delayed our normal 

process, but we cannot rush into this draft budget merely moving from draft 

to first reading.  We must do our due diligence to listen to all Council members 

and allow the citizens input.  Ms. Patterson also stated that we need to keep 

open transparency.  

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye 

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Nay  

                      Mr. Webb Nay   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Aye 

                      Mayor Craig  Nay  

 

On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, to approve the agenda 

as presented. 

 

Discussion ensued.   

 

           The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye 

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Nay 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye  

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided and 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person. (VIDEO 12:10 – 26:44) 

 

 Michael Henningsen 

 Katy Brown 

 Blake Baker 



 
- 47 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (VIDEO 11:18 – 12:08) 

 

 April 20, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 

On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, Council approved the 

April 20, 2020 regular meeting minutes as presented. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye  

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye  

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Abstained 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye 

 

G. PETITIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

1. Public Hearing and First Reading – An Ordinance of the Council for the Town of 

Abingdon, Virginia proposing a budget for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia and to 

make appropriation for the current expenses of the Town and to fix a tax rate upon real 

and personal property, to fix all other local tax rates and fees and rates on utility services 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021. – James Morani, 

Town Manager  (VIDEO 26:45 – 2:23:08) 
 

Town Manager James Morani advised Council that tonight’s presentation was a summary 

of all line items combined that is the statutorily required budget document that must be approved 

by the Council and was advertised.   Mr. Morani stated that prior to discussion with the Finance 

Committee, there were some personnel changes, together with a software change, and COVID-19 

which complicated the process.   Discussion ensued and Mr. Morani presented the budget.  Council 

discussed specific questions regarding line items. 

 

(As a result of audio difficulties, Council took a brief recess) (VIDEO 2:03:19 – 2:09:41) 

 

Discussion resumed.   

 

Mayor Craig declared the public hearing open for comments.  Hearing no comments, 

Mayor Craig closed the public hearing.   Mayor Craig questioned whether the proposal should be 

rejected. (VIDEO 2:21:55 – 2:23:06) 

 

Ms. Patterson stated that the proposal should be rejected.  Mayor Craig called for 

roll call. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  



 
- 48 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

  Mr. Bradley  Yes 

                      Mrs. Quetsch  No 

                      Mr. Webb No 

                      Ms. Patterson                            Yes 

                      Mayor Craig  No 

 

H. CONSIDERATION OF ANY BIDS 

 

1. Authorization to award contract to Ken’s Construction, Inc. for the Russell Road 

Signalized Crosswalk project  – John Dew, Director of Public Works (VIDEO 

2:23:09 – 2:26:53) 

 

John Dew, Director of Public Works, stated that the Town entered into an agreement with 

the Virginia Department of Transportation to build a signalized crosswalk on Russell Road near 

the ballfields. The Town received bids from two contractors and after review and consideration 

would like to award the bid to the lowest bidder, Ken’s Construction, Inc. in the amount of 

$48,075.20, after approval from the Virginia Department of Transportation.   Mr. Dew stated that 

this project is 100% Virginia Department of Transportation funded through the Highway Safety 

Improvement Program.  Discussion ensued. 

 

On motion by Mr. Bradley, seconded by Mr. Webb, Council awarded the 

contract to Ken’s Construction, Inc. in the amount of $48,075.20 and 

authorized the Town Manager to sign any and all documents necessary. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye  

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye  

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Aye 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye 

 

 

I. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN MANAGER (VIDEO 2:26:55 – 2:28:53) 

 

Town Manager James Morani advised Council that the staff received bid document ready 

plans from CHA for review and feedback in hopes to go out for bid in early June.   Mr. Morani 

advised Council of his plan to reopen the town hall and the police department building on May 26, 

2020.  Mr. Morani also advised Council that he just received notification that Plumb Alley has 

been cancelled for 2020. 

 

J. PASSAGE OF RESOLUTIONS 

 



 
- 49 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

1. Resolution to consider VDOT request for a permanent easement over a portion of the 

Virginia Creeper Trail right-of-way, parallel to Drowning Ford Road, approximately 

700 feet north of the existing intersection of Route 58 and Virginia Creeper Trail rights-

of-way. VDOT seeks this easement for construction and maintenance of two new 

bridges to be constructed along the proposed new alignment of Route 58.  – John Dew, 

Director of Public Works (VIDEO 2:28:55 – 2:30:39) 
 

John Dew, Director of Public Works advised Council that this matter had been before them 

several times and Cameron Bell, Counsel has reached an agreement with Virginia Department of 

Transportation and requested that Council approve the Resolution as presented. 

 

On motion by Mr. Bradley, seconded by Ms. Patterson, Council approved the 

Resolution as presented. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye  

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye  

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Aye 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye 

 

2. Second Amended Resolution to suspend disconnection of water and/or sewer service 

effective from the date of its passage until May 31, 2020, to any customer due to non-

payment. – James Morani, Town Manager (VIDEO 2:30:41 – 2:33:27) 

 

Town Manager James Morani recommended that Council approved a Second Amended 

Resolution to suspend disconnection of water and/or sewer service effective from the date of its 

passage through May 31, 2020, to any customer due to non-payment.   Mr. Morani stated that he 

would be communicating with Washington County Service Authority regarding that authority’s 

extension. 

 

On motion by Ms. Patterson, seconded by Mr. Webb, Council approved the 

Second Amended Resolution to suspend disconnection of water and/or sewer 

service effective from the date of its passage until May 31, 2020, to any 

customer due to non-payment. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye  

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye  

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Aye 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye 



 
- 50 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

  

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 

 

1 Second Reading of Ordinance – Amendment to Part II – Code, Chapter 2 – 

Administration, Article VI. – Planning Commission, Division 2. – Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-326. – Town provisions, Subsection (b) – Composition, qualifications and 

appointment of members. – James Morani, Town Manager (VIDEO 2:33:28 – 

2:34:44) 

 

Town Manager James Morani advised Council that proposal removes the Town Manager 

from the Planning Commission.  Mr. Morani stated that upon the passage of this Ordinance it 

would become effective immediately that there is no need to be concerned regarding any quorum 

issues with the next meeting being held electronically.  Mr. Morani further stated that it was his 

hope to have applicants by the June 15, 2020 Council meeting and make an appointment to the 

Planning Commission for the replacement of the Town Manager. 

 

On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, Council approved the 

Ordinance as presented. 

 

          The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

  Mr. Bradley  Aye  

                      Mrs. Quetsch  Aye  

                      Mr. Webb Aye   

                      Ms. Patterson                            Aye 

                      Mayor Craig  Aye 

 

 

M. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

1 Consideration of date and time for July organizational – regular meeting – James 

Morani, Town Manager (VIDEO 2:34:44 – 2:37:19) 
 

Town Manager James Morani led discussion regarding dates and times to schedule the July 

2020 Council meeting.   Discussion ensued and it was agreed to schedule the meeting on July 1, 

2020 at 6:30 pm.   Discussion was also held regarding dates for the July work session, however no 

date was agreed upon. 

 

N. OLD BUSINESS 

 

O. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 2:37:45 – 2:38:44) 
 



 
- 51 - 

May 18, 2020 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

Ms. Patterson stated that she talked to some of our delegates and senators about some of 

the money that the government was going to give for the COVID-19 pandemic.   Ms. Patterson 

further stated that she wrote a letter to all delegates in this area and the senators and Mr. Griffith 

asking for funds for not only Abingdon but for our surrounding neighbors in Washington County, 

Damascus, Meadowview and Glade Spring as well, in hopes of getting some of the COVID-19 

distribution. 

 

P. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES (VIDEO 2:37:19 – 2:37:41) 

  

1 Planning Commission 

 

- Appointment to fill a vacancy as a result of Council member no longer serving 

 

2 Board of Building Code Appeals 

 

- Appointment to fill the expired term of Charlie Day 

 

Mayor Craig stated that no applications were received and the matter would be carried 

over to the next meeting. 

 

Mayor Craig adjourned the meeting.   

 

       ________________________________ 

       J. Wayne Craig, Mayor 

 

_______________________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 















































PROPOSED DRAFT 6/1/2020 
 

303 Vacation Leave 

The Town of Abingdon offers vacation leave with pay to full-time employees.  Eligible employees will accrue 
vacation leave after the 15th of each month for the current month of employment.  If a full-time employee is hired 
prior to the 15th of the month, the employee will receive the monthly vacation leave accrual.  However, if an 
employee separates from employment prior to the 15th of the month, the employee will NOT accrue vacation leave 
for that month. 

Vacation leave benefits will accrue upon commencement of full-time employment and are calculated on the basis of 
a "benefit year".  A "benefit year" is the 12-month period that begins with the employee’s date of hire and 
subsequent anniversaries. 

The amount of paid vacation leave received depends on the employee’s length of service as an eligible employee.  
Below is the schedule for vacation leave accrual and maximum limits: 
 

Length of Service Monthly Accrual Maximum Accrual 
0-2 Years (0-23 Months) 8 Hours 192 Hours 
After 2 Years 10 Hours 240 Hours 
After 10 Years 12 Hours 288 Hours 
After 15 Years 14 Hours 336 Hours 
After 20 Years 16 Hours 384 Hours 

 

Once an employee enters full-time status, the employee begins to earn paid vacation leave according to the schedule 
in this policy.  Employees cannot request to use vacation leave before it is earned.  Earned vacation leave is 
added to the employee’s balance on the last payday of the month.  The Town’s payday occurs bi-weekly on Fridays.  

Employees may not take vacation leave in less than one-hour increments.  To schedule vacation leave, employees 
should first ask for advance approval from their supervisor.  Each request will be reviewed based on a number of 
factors, including operational needs.  

Employees will be paid for vacation leave at their base pay rate of pay at the time of the vacation.  Vacation pay does 
not include overtime or any special forms of compensation such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift 
differentials. 

We encourage employees to use available paid vacation leave for rest and relaxation.  Budget permitting, an 
employee may receive compensation for unused leave up to 40 hours at the conclusion of the benefit year at the rate 
of pay at which the leave was earned.  The request will be made to the Department Head and approved by the Town 
Manager. 

Separation of Employment: Upon separation of employment, an employee will be paid for any unused vacation 
leave that has been earned through your last day of work.  Upon separation of employment, a full-time employee (or 
the employee’s estate in case of the employee’s death) will receive a payment of 100% of accrued vacation leave.  
Accrual of vacation leave is discontinued upon separation of employment.  If an employee is laid off and 
subsequently re-hired within 12 months, the employee’s years of eligible service for the purpose of vacation leave 
accrual will continue from the date of separation. 

 
 

  



PROPOSED DRAFT 6/1/2020 
 

303 Sick Leave 

The Town of Abingdon provides paid sick leave to full-time employees who are temporarily absent due to illness or 
injury.  Eligible employees will accrue sick leave after the 15th of each month for the current month of employment.  
If a full-time employee is hired prior to the 15th of the month, the employee will receive the monthly sick leave 
accrual.  However, if a full-time employee separates from employment prior to the 15th of the month, the employee 
will NOT accrue sick leave for that month.  

Sick leave benefits will accrue upon commencement of employment and are calculated on the basis of a "benefit 
year".  A "benefit year" is the 12-month period that begins with the employee’s date of hire and subsequent 
anniversaries. 

Each full-time employee will accrue sick leave at the rate of 8 hours per month (after the 15th), which may total 96 
hours of sick leave annually.  

Once an employee enters full-time status, the employee begins to earn paid sick leave.  Employees cannot request 
to use sick leave before it is earned.  Earned sick leave is added to the employee’s balance on the last payday of the 
month.  The Town’s payday occurs bi-weekly on Fridays.  

Employees may not take sick leave in less than one-hour increments.  Employees may use sick leave for absences 
related to their own illness or injury or for the illness or injury of a family member covered under the Family and 
Medical Leave Act.  

An employee who cannot report to work because of an illness or injury should notify his/her supervisor before the 
scheduled start of the workday, if possible.  The employee’s supervisor must also be contacted on each additional 
day of absence. 

If an employee is absent for three (3) or more consecutive days due to illness or injury, he/she must provide the 
Town with an authentic/certified doctor's statement that states the illness or injury, when it began, and the date when 
the employee is eligible to return to work.  The Town may also request a similar statement for other sick leave 
absences of less than three (3) days.  Failure to provide an authentic/certified doctor's statement may lead to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination.  

Paid sick leave will be calculated based on the employee’s base pay rate at the time of the absence.  Sick leave 
benefits do not include any special forms of compensation, such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift 
differentials.  

Unused sick leave will be allowed to accumulate until an eligible employee has accrued 1,000 hours of sick leave 
(*exception: grandfathered employees).  If unused sick leave reaches this maximum, the employee will temporarily 
stop accruing sick leave.  When the employee starts using sick leave again and the total accrued sick leave falls 
below 1,000 hours, the employee will start accruing sick leave again.  Sick leave benefits are meant to provide 
income protection in the case of illness or injury.  They may not be used for any other absence.   

*Grandfathered Employees: A grandfathered employee is an employee who has accrued 1,000 or more sick hours 
as of 12/31/2015.  These employees will not lose any sick leave, but will not accrue additional sick leave unless they 
fall below the 1,000-hour maximum. 

Effect of Reassignment: Promotion, demotion, transfers or reassignment does not affect the amount of accumulated 
sick leave. 

Separation of Employment: Upon separation of employment via voluntary resignation or retirement, the employee 
(or the employee’s estate in the case of the employee’s death) shall be paid at a rate of 25% of the value of accrued 
sick leave based upon the balance (up to 1,000 hours*) at the time of separation if they are vested (5 years) with the 
Town.  Accrual of sick leave is discontinued upon separation of employment. 



 
 

THIRD AMENDED RESOLUTION OF  

THE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON 

SUSPENDING SEWER DISCONNECTIONS  

 

 WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Abingdon (“Council”) acknowledges the 

declarations of an emergency related to the spread of the coronavirus or COVID-19 issued at 

the federal, state and county levels; and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Town of Abingdon Ordinances § 44-237(c) when any sewer 

bill is more than 20-days in default, water and/or sewer service to such premises shall be 

discontinued until such bill is paid;  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Town of Abingdon Ordinances § 74-240 “all unpaid charges 

for sewer service, together with penalties and interest thereon, shall constitute a lien on the 

property served”; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the present emergency may cause hardships to the citizens and businesses 

of the Town;   

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Town suspend disconnection of water 

and/or sewer service to any customer due to nonpayment for the duration of this 

resolution.  This resolution is in effect from the date of its passage until June 30, 2020.  This 

resolution shall expire on its own terms as of midnight on June 30, 2020, if not extended by the 

Council.   

 

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be placed in the 

official minutes of the Town. 

 

 Adopted on June 15, 2020. 

 

 

      TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

       

 

      _______________________________ 

      J. Wayne Craig, Mayor 

 

 



The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”) hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted at a meeting 

of the Council held on June 15, 2020.   I hereby further certify that such meeting was a regularly 

scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing Resolution a quorum was 

present.  I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members 

and the voting on the foregoing Resolution was as follows: 

 
 

Member Attendance Vote 

Wayne Craig, Mayor   

Cindy Patterson, Vice Mayor   

Al Bradley   

Donna Quetsch   

Derek Webb   

 

 

WITNESS my hand and seal of the Town of Abingdon as June 15, 2020. 

 

 

(SEAL)     _____________________________    

      Kimberly S. Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 
 

 

 



AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL  

FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA TO AMEND  

Part II – Code, Chapter 2 – Administration, Article VI. – Planning Commission;  

Division 2 – Powers and Duties, Sub-section 2-351- Officers- and 2-356 – Secretary. 

WHEREAS, § 15.2-2212 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, grants the local 

governing body the authority to appoint members of the local planning commission; and 

WHEREAS, § 15.2-2217 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, grants the local 

governing body the authority to authorize the local planning commission to create and fill such 

other offices as it deems necessary and appoint such employees and staff as it deems necessary for 

its work; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Abingdon's current Code, Chapter 2 – Administration, Article 

VI. – Planning Commission; Division 2 – Powers and Duties, Sub-section 2-326 – Town 

provisions, the Council for the Town of Abingdon has found it in the best interest to amend the 

body of its ordinance; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the council of the Town of Abingdon that: 

 

1. Should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or 

constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Code of the Town of 

Abingdon, Virginia; and 

2. The Town of Abingdon's Code – Part II, Chapter 2 – Administration, Article VI. – 

Planning Commission; Division 2 – Powers and Duties, Sub-sections 2-351- Officers- and 2-356 

– Secretary, that are proposed for amendment currently appear as follows: 

Sec. 2-351. - Officers. 

 

The officers of the commission shall consist of a chairman, vice chairman, and secretary, 

who shall be the town manager. 

 

Sec. 2-356. - Secretary. 

 

The secretary, who shall be the town manager, shall provide to the members notice of all 

regular and special meetings of the commission, and shall attend all such meetings and keep a 

record of their proceedings, which shall be a public record. Minutes shall be distributed before the 

next succeeding regular meeting of the commission. In general, the secretary shall perform all of 



the duties incident to the office of the secretary and such other duties as may from time to time be 

assigned to him by the chairman or the commission. The secretary may, with the permission of the 

commission, delegate certain of his/her duties and responsibilities to available town staff. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the recommendation of the Council for the 

Town of Abingdon, Part II – Code, Chapter 2 – Administration, Article VI. – Planning 

Commission, Division 2 – Powers and Duties, Sub-sections 2-351- Officers- and 2-356 – 

Secretary, be amended as follows: 

 

Sec. 2-351. - Officers. 

 

The officers of the commission shall consist of a chairman, vice chairman, and secretary, 

who shall be the town manager. 

 

Sec. 2-356. - Secretary. 

 

The secretary, who shall be the town manager, shall provide to the members notice of all 

regular and special meetings of the commission, and shall attend all such meetings and keep a 

record of their proceedings, which shall be a public record. Minutes shall be distributed before the 

next succeeding regular meeting of the commission. In general, the secretary shall perform all of 

the duties incident to the office of the secretary and such other duties as may from time to time be 

assigned to him by the chairman or the commission. The secretary may, with the permission of the 

commission, be town staff who is not a member of the commission or a member of the commission 

and delegate certain of his/her duties and responsibilities to available town staff. 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia, I hereby certify 

that I have reviewed the foregoing proposed ordinance to amend Part II – Code, Chapter 2 – 

Administration, Article VI. – Planning Commission, Division 2 – Powers and Duties, Sub-

section 2-351- Officers- and 2-356 – Secretary, and find it to be in correct form, as set forth 

above, this fifteenth day of June, 2020. 

Cameron Bell, Counsel 

 

This ordinance was adopted on June 15, 2020, to take effect on June 15, 2020. 

 

 

J. Wayne Craig, Mayor 

 

  



The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting 

of the Council held on June 15, 2020. I hereby certify that such meeting was a regularly 

scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was 

present. I further certify that the minutes of meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, 

during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I further certify that 

the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and the voting on the foregoing 

ordinance was as follows: 

 

 

MEMBERS ATTENDANCE VOTE 

J. Wayne Craig, Mayor   

Cindy Patterson, Vice Mayor   

Al Bradley   

Donna Quetsch   

Derek Webb   

 

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as  on June 15,  2020. 

 

 

(SEAL)  
Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 



AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

PROPOSING A BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA AND TO 

MAKE APPROPRIATION FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES OF THE TOWN AND 

TO FIX A TAX RATE UPON REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY, TO FIX ALL 

OTHER LOCAL TAX RATES AND FEES AND RATES ON UTILITY SERVICES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2020 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2021 

   

WHEREAS, a proposed balanced budget setting forth the revenues and expenditures for 

the Town of Abingdon, Virginia was prepared and submitted to the Abingdon Town Council on 

May 18, 2020 and June 15, 2020; and   

   

WHEREAS, the Town of Abingdon Finance Committee held budget work sessions on 

February 19, 2020, March 18, 2020 and March 31, 2020; Abingdon Town Council held budget 

work sessions on March 26, 2020 and April 20, 2020 to review and make necessary modifications 

to the aforesaid proposed budget, that it was deemed to be in the Town’s best financial interest; 

and   

   

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 18, 2020 and June 15, 2020 in accordance 

with Section 15.2-2506 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, concerning the adoption of the 

proposed 2020/2021 Town of Abingdon, Virginia Fiscal Year budget and to fix all applicable local 

tax rates, user fees and utility rates, as are further set forth herein; and   

   

WHEREAS, the first reading of this ordinance was held by the Council of the Town of 

Abingdon, Virginia on Monday, May 28, 2020 with the second reading of the Ordinance occurring 

on June 15, 2020; and  

    

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Abingdon, 

Virginia, pursuant to Section 15.2-2500, et seq. of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, the 

following:   

 

   In accordance with budget estimates enclosed herewith, the following revenues and 

appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021 are hereby 

authorized:   

 

   

Revenue Appropriations General Fund   

General Property Taxes  $2,921,399 

Other Local Taxes  $5,198,000 

Permits  $39,200 

Fines & Forfeitures  $34,400 

Revenue-Use of Money & Property  $62,175 

Charges for Services  $445,750 

Miscellaneous Revenue  $793,000 

Recovered Costs  $5,000 



Revenue-Other Agencies  $1,375,658 

 TOTAL REVENUE GENERAL FUND 2020-21                        $10,874,582 

   

Expenditure Appropriations General Fund   

   General Government   

      Legislative  $70,652 

      General & Financial Administration  $1,559,462 

   TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT  $1,630,114 

   

  Public Safety   

      Police Department  $2,044,998 

      Fire Department  $478,084 

      Building Inspections  $125,685 

    TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY                            $2,648,767 

   

  Maintenance of Highways, Streets, Buildings &   

  Grounds, Recreation, Community Development   

     Public Works  $369,000 

     Street Maintenance & Operations  $1,465,792 

     Facility Management  $632,176 

     Central Garage  $375,741 

     Solid Waste Collection & Recycling  $282,012 

     Parks & Recreation  $1,006,660 

     Cemeteries  $1,260 

     Community Development  $792,079 

           Non-Departmental  $146,767 

     Municipal Insurance  $105,732 

     Debt Service & Restricted Funds  $979,782 

          Transfers to Other Funds  $438,700 
TOTAL MAINTENANCE OF HIGHWAYS, STREETS, 
BUILDINGS & GROUNDS, RECREATION, 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  $6,595,701 

   

TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS      $10,874,582 

   

  Revenue Appropriations – Capital Projects Fund   

    Loan Proceeds  $7,500,000 

    Short Term Financing  $530,680 

    Transfer from General Fund  $438,700 
  TOTAL REVENUE APPROPRIATIONS – CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUNDS  $8,469,380 

       
 Expenditure Appropriations – Capital Projects     
Fund   



    Information Technology Capital Projects   $596,680 

    Police Department Capital Projects  $184,550 

    Facility Management Capital Projects  $129,000 

    Parks & Playgrounds Capital Projects  $18,650 

    Coomes Recreation Center Capital Projects  $40,500 

         Meadows Sports Complex Capital Project       $7,500,000 
   TOTAL EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS –     
    CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND       $8,469,380 

   
  Revenue Appropriations – Street Maintenance 
Fund    

      Virginia Department of Transportation   $2,466,500 
  TOTAL REVENUE APPROPRIATIONS – STREET  
   MAINTENANCE FUND       $2,466,500 

   
  Expenditure Appropriations – Street Maintenance 
Fund   
       Virginia Department of Transportation Urban  
       Maintenance   $916,500 

       Park Street Project  $1,550,000 
  TOTAL EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS –     
  STREET MAINTENANCE FUND  $2,466,500 

   

   Revenue Appropriations – Sewer Fund   

      Sewer Service    $3,127,098 

      Sewer Service Penalties   $50,000 

       WCSA Exit 13  $82,500 

       Sewer Connections  $80,000 

       Recovered Costs  $1,000 

        Pretreatment Control Authority  $79,800 

        Non-operating Revenues  $1,440,324 
  TOTAL REVENUE APPROPRIATIONS – SEWER  
   FUND  $4,860,722 

   

   Expenditure Appropriations – Sewer Fund   

       Administration  $259,035 

       Collection  $2,314,439 

       Disposal  $1,139,686 

       Debt Service  $815,918 

       Pretreatment Control Authority  $93,092 

       Non-Departmental  $20,000 

       Insurance  $31,552 

       Capital Projects  $187,000 

   TOTAL EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS   $4,860,722 



  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

that the following local tax rates and utility rates for fiscal year 2020/2021 shall be set as 

follows:     

   

 The Town tax rate upon all real property will remain unchanged at $0.28 per $100 of 

assessed value.   

   

• 10% tax on the purchase of utility services will remain unchanged.    

   

• Allowance for elderly & handicapped real property tax exemption shall remain the 

same and as per Ordinance passed by the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia.   

    

• Assessed value of real and personal property shall be determined by the Washington 

County Commissioner of Revenue and by the State Corporation Commission for public 

service corporation property.   

   

 Sewer rates will remain unchanged as shown on the attachment entitled: 

 

“SEWER RATES – Monthly Service & Connection Charges Effective July 1, 2018” 

 

• Residential/Commercial sewer rates and sewer tap fees will remain unchanged.    

      

• Meals and Lodging tax rate of 7% will remain unchanged.   

 

• Personal Property tax rate of $0.76 per $100 of Loan value will remain unchanged. 

  

• Cigarette tax rate of $0.35 per package containing twenty-five (25) or fewer cigarettes 
will remain unchanged. 

  

• Solid waste collection rate of $12.00 per can and will be $3.85 for any additional cans 
will remain unchanged. 

   

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance of adoption of budget and fixation of 

local tax rates and utility rates shall take effect on July 1, 2020.     

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 

 



 

CERTIFICATE 

   

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, I hereby certify that I 
have reviewed the foregoing ordinance Proposing a Budget for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 
and to Make Appropriation for the Current Expenses of the Town and to Fix a Tax Rate Upon 
Real and Personal Property and a Rate on Utility Services for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 
2020 and ending June 30, 2021 of the Town of Abingdon to reflect the foregoing amendments, 
modifications and additions and find it to be in correct form this _____  day of May, 2020. 

 

_______________________________   

Cameron Bell   

Town Counsel for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia   

 

  

This ordinance was adopted on second reading on June 15, 2020 to take effect on July 1, 2020. 

   

_____________________________   

Mayor   

Town of Abingdon   

   

The undersigned clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies that the 
foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Council held on June 15, 2020.  I hereby further certify that such meeting was a regularly 
scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was 
present.  I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members 
and the voting on the foregoing ordinance was as follows:   

   

 

       

MEMBERS   ATENDANCE   VOTE   

Wayne Craig, Mayor        

Cindy Patterson, Vice Mayor        

Al Bradley         

Donna Quetsch       

Derek Webb       

   

   

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of June ___, 2020 

   

(SEAL)______________________________   

Town Clerk   

Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

 



 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE COUNCIL  

FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON  

 RECOGNIZING JUNE 7 - 13, 2020 

NATIONAL GARDEN WEEK  

 
 WHEREAS, Gardeners have a passion for nurturing the beauty and resources of the earth 

through the planting of seeds, the care of all plants and the riches of their efforts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardeners seek to add beauty, splendor, fragrance and nutrition to our lives 

through the growing of herbs, vegetables, foliage and flowers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardeners work to preserve our country’s traditional spirit of independence 

and initiative through innovation and hard work; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardeners advocate the importance of all creatures, large and small, that 

share our world and their roles in a balanced and productive ecology; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardening furnishes a challenge and productive activity for many citizens, 

for those just learning as well as those having years of experience; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardening promotes a healthy lifestyle that lasts a lifetime, helps reduce 

stress from other areas of our life, teaches that rewards can come from diligent efforts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Gardening enables members of Garden Clubs across the nation and the world 

to serve others in the communities where they reside and work; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, J. Wayne Craig, Mayor of the Town of Abingdon, do hereby 

proclaim that that in an effort to acknowledge the importance of gardening and the numerous 

contributions of Gardeners, National Garden Clubs, Inc., designates the week of June 7 – 13, 2020 

as National Garden Week. 

 

 

      TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

 

 

 

      BY:  __________________________ 

        Mayor 




	A - 1 2020.06.15 agenda
	F - 1 2020.05.18 minutes
	G - 1 Notice of Public Hearing - BHC
	G - 1a Proposed ROW and Easement
	G - 2 Notice of Public Hearing - BHC
	G - 2a Proposed Zoning Text Amendment - Sub 8-2-4
	G - 3 Notice of Public Hearing - BHC
	G - 3a Proposed Zoning Text Amendment Subsection 8-2-13
	I - 1 Vacation and Sick Leave Policies (Proposed Draft)
	J - 1 Third Amended Resolution - suspend disconnection
	K - 1 Ordinance to amend Secretary provisions of PC_ Abingdon 15-1
	L - 1 Revised Budget Ordinance 2020.06.09
	M - 1 Proclamation National Garden Week 2020
	M - 2 Michael Noonkester final plat 1103 Empire Drive

